
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

East Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Moore (Chair), Cregan (Vice-Chair), Douglas, 

Funnell, Hyman, King, Orrell, Taylor, I Waudby and 
Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 12 June 2008 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
The Site Visit for this meeting will commence at 10.00am on 

Wednesday 11 June 2008 at St Leonard’s Place Car Park. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 5 - 24) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of meetings of the Sub-Committee 

held on 8 and 29 May 2008. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone who 
wishes to register or requires further information is requested to 
contact the Democracy Officer on the contact details listed at the 
foot of this agenda. The deadline for registering is Wednesday 11 
June 2008 at 5.00pm. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning application related to the East 

Area. 
 

a) J H Shouksmith and Sons Ltd, Outgang Lane, 
Osbaldwick, York YO19 4UP (08/00736/FULM)   

(Pages 25 - 45) 

 Erection of 3 no. two storey pitched roof buildings comprising 8 no. 
business units for B1, B2 and B8 uses, with associated access, 
parking, cycle storage and landscaping [Osbaldwick Ward]  
[Site Visit]. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 

• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
EAST AREA PLANNING 

SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
 

SITE VISITS 
 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 11 JUNE 2008 
 
 
TIME    SITE       

  
 
 
10:15 am    J H Shouksmith and Sons Ltd, Outgang Lane, Osbaldwick, York   (4a)        

               
   

 
 
 
 
 

Members can either meet on site at 10:15 am or 
take the pool car which will leave St Leonards Place car park at 10.00am 

 (if you wish to use the pool car please contact Simon Glazier on ext 1642 

by the end of the day on Tuesday). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Page 3



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 4



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING EAST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE 8 MAY 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MOORE (CHAIR), CREGAN (VICE-
CHAIR), FIRTH, FUNNELL, HYMAN, KING, 
TAYLOR, VASSIE AND WISEMAN 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS 

107. INSPECTION OF SITES  

The following sites were inspected before the meeting: 
  
Site 
  

Attended by Reason for Visit 

21 The Avenue, 
Haxby, York  

Cllrs Hyman, Moore, Vassie 
and Wiseman  
  

In view of objections 
received to the 
application and as the 
application is 
recommended for 
approval.  

Long Acres,  
63 Osbaldwick Village, 
York  

Cllrs Hyman, Moore, Vassie 
and Wiseman 

Cllr Morley – Local Member  

At the request of the 
Local Member and in 
view of representations 
made.  

Land to the rear of 85 
Main Street, Fulford, 
York 

Cllrs Hyman, Moore, Vassie 
and Wiseman 
  
Cllr Aspden – Local Member 

At the request of the 
Local Member and in 
view of objections 
received. 

180 Fulford Road, York Cllrs Hyman, Moore, Vassie 
and Wiseman 

In view of objections 
received and to view 
the site access and 
adjacent development. 

  
108. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

At this point Members are asked to declare any personal of prejudicial 
interests they may have in the business on the agenda. 

Councillor Cregan declared a personal prejudicial interest in agenda item 
4g (Hallfield Motors, 7 Hallfield Road, York), as he knew the owner of the 
site and left the room and took no part in the discussion and voting 
thereon. 

109. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of meetings of the Sub-Committee 
held on 10 and 24 April 2008 be approved as correct 
records and be signed by the Chair. 

Agenda Item 2Page 5



110. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that nobody had registered to speak under the Council’s 
Public Participation Scheme, on general issues within the remit of the Sub-
Committee. 

111. PLANS LIST  

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Sustainable Development) relating to the following planning 
applications, outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and 
setting out the views and advice of consultees and officers. 

111a Stray Garth Community Home, 7 Stray Garth, York YO31 1EL 
(08/00764/FUL)  

Members considered a full application, submitted by Lovel Cooper (South 
Yorkshire) Ltd, for the erection of 4 no. four bedroomed pitched roof 
dwellings with attached pitched roof garages and associated access 
(resubmission). 

Officers updated that: 

• Highways Network Management had now confirmed that they had 
no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of a number 
of standard conditions;  

• An additional two letters of objection had been received bringing 
the total to 10 letters; 

• The reference in the report at 1.1b to none of the properties having 
obscure glazed windows was incorrect, as it appeared that Plot 4 
had still retained this glazing. This would also be a ground for 
recommending refusal of the application although the applicant had 
confirmed that he would be happy to amend the application to 
remove the glazing; 

• There was also a need to include the previous reasons for refusal 
with the amendment of the final reason to include reference to the 
obscure glazing to Plot 4, which would allow for unacceptable 
overlooking of the garden of 14 Meadow Way. 

In answer to questions, Officers confirmed that the height, scale and 
number of properties was unchanged from the original application. The 
only minor changes related to the siting of the garages on Plots 1 to 4, Plot 
1 had been relocated closer to 15 Meadow Way and the obscure glazing 
had been removed from all but one property. To increase light in the 
second floor bedrooms an additional roof light had been added. 

Representations, in objection to the application, were made by a neighbour 
on behalf of local residents. He confirmed that he understood that there 
were now 11 objections in writing to the new scheme although their 
objections were the same as those raised to the previous scheme. He 
stated that the objectors felt that the height and density of the development 
would be overbearing, oppressive and overshadow adjacent gardens. The 
four brick windows were considered out of character and no alterations had 

Page 6



been made to the basic design of the properties. It was felt that the 
development would impact on the character of the area and neighbouring 
amenities. He therefore supported refusal of the application. 

RESOLVED:  That the application be refused.1. 

REASON:    1. The Council consider that by virtue of the height of the 
proposed dwellings and their close proximity to 
adjoining homes and gardens the development would 
appear unduly dominant and overbearing and this 
would detract from neighbours' living conditions 
resulting in an unacceptable loss of their amenity. As 
such the proposal conflicts with policy GP1 (in 
particular criterion b and i) of the City of York Draft 
Local Plan  (fourth set of changes) approved April 
2005 and Central Government advice relating to 
design quality and context contained within Planning 
Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable 
Development) and Planning Policy Statement 3 
(Housing). 

      2. The density, height and layout of the proposed 
development together with the loss of existing 
boundary trees and the cramped environment for 
vehicle movements results in an unacceptable 
overdevelopment of the site.  The development is not 
considered to acceptably relate to that of surrounding 
housing and would have a negative impact on the 
character and appearance of the surrounding 
environment and therefore conflicts with Policies GP1 
(criterion a), H4a (criterion c and d) and H5a of the 
City of York Draft Local Plan (fourth set of changes) 
2005 and Central Government advice relating to 
design quality and context contained within PPS1 
(Delivering Sustainable Development) and PPS3 
(Housing). 

      3. To prevent unacceptable levels of overlooking into 
neighbouring properties the Council consider that the 
second floor bedroom windows in the front elevation of 
plots 2,3 and 4 would need to be bricked up. The 
proposed inclusion of velux roof lights in the rooms 
with no traditional windows would create an 
unsatisfactory living environment for occupiers of 
these rooms resulting in an unacceptable standard of 
residential accommodation and amenity. As such this 
would not comply with Central Government advice 
relating to design quality contained within PPS1 
(Delivering Sustainable Development) and PPS3 
(Housing) 

      
              4. The proposed second floor front window in unit 4 

would create unacceptable overlooking of the garden 

Page 7



of 14 Meadow Way.  As such the proposal conflicts 
with policy GP1 (in particular criterion i) of the City of 
York Draft Local Plan  (fourth set of changes) 
approved April 2005 and Central Government advice 
relating to design quality and context contained within 
PPS1 (Delivering Sustainable Developments) and 
PPS3 (Housing).

Action Required  
1. Issue the weekly decision notice and include on the 
weekly planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111b Land to the Rear of 85 Main Street, Fulford, York (08/00180/FUL)  

Consideration was given to a full application, submitted by Mr S J Melley, 
for the erection of a two storey three bedroom dwelling after the demolition 
of an existing outbuilding. 

Officers updated that: 

• Two additional letters of objection had been received from local 
residents who considered that the development would harm the 
Conservation Area and residential amenity. They felt that the 
dwelling would constitute an overdevelopment of the site and stated 
that bats appeared to be using the outbuilding;  

• An email had been received from the Local Member, which had 
been circulated at the meeting, raising objections in relation to harm 
to the Conservation Area and residential amenity, over development 
of the site and the presence of bats; 

• A letter of objection had been circulated at the meeting from the 
occupier of 83 Main Street; 

• The Conservation Officer had visited the site and confirmed that 
bats may be present in the outbuilding and the imposition of a 
condition had been recommended requiring a bat survey prior to 
development commencing; 

• Amendment was required to Condition 7, the landscaping scheme, 
to include the replacement of the semi mature tree to be removed 
on site; 

• Condition 8 required replacement with a standard drainage 
condition; 

• Amendment of Condition 12 to relate to the “letting of bedrooms” 
rather than “the long term letting of bedrooms”. 

Representations in objection to the application were received from a 
neighbour. He stated that notification about the development had only 
recently been received which had left little time in which to prepare to make 
representations at the meeting. He pointed out that the family home 
proposed, together with the new build property already granted permission 
adjoining the site, would result in a lack of space for all the adjoining 
properties. If permission were granted there would be 6 family homes with 
up to 2 vehicles per property reversing in/out over the pavement onto a 
major road. 

Page 8



Representations in support of the application were received from the 
applicant’s agent who referred to the objections raised. He confirmed that 
parking on site would be improved with a minimum of 7 car parking spaces 
being provided together with a turning area. He also pointed out that No 83 
had on site parking and their own turning facility.  Regarding impact on the 
Conservation Area he stated that the Conservation Officer had raised no 
objections to the scheme and that amendments had already been made to 
the scheme at her request. He felt that the impact on adjoining properties 
would be minimal as the property had been designed to avoid direct 
overlooking and Highways had confirmed that access would be improved 
to the site. 

In answer to Members questions Officers confirmed that the proposed 
cycle store was to be sited in a cupboard under the properties stairs, but 
accessed externally. 

Members raised concerns regarding vehicular access, that the proposal 
would be overdevelopment of the site causing detriment to the amenity of 
all the adjacent residents, they also felt that conversion of the existing barn 
would be a better use of the site. Following further discussion it was 

RESOLVED:  That the application be refused. 1.

REASON:      1. The proposed two storey dwelling, by reason of its 
size, scale and position would constitute an 
overdevelopment of the site which would detract from 
the character and appearance of the Fulford 
Conservation Area, contrary to Policies GP1 
(paragraphs a, b and c) H4a and HE2 of the City of 
York Draft local Plan, and Central Government advice 
contained within Planning Policy Statement 1 : 
"Delivering Sustainable Development" and Planning 
Policy Guidance Note 15 : "Planning and the Historic 
Environment". 

2. The proposed two storey dwelling, in addition to the 
existing and proposed properties, would result in an 
unacceptable number of traffic movements utilising the 
substandard access and create internal congestion 
within the courtyard, which would be detrimental to 
highway and pedestrian safety. 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111c 106 Heslington Lane, York YO10 4ND (08/00586/FUL)  

Consideration was given to a full application, submitted by Mr and Mrs J 
and L Carr, for a single storey pitched roof rear extension. 

Officers displayed plans of the proposals and following discussion it was  

Page 9



RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
imposition of the conditions listed in the report. 1.

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact on 
the amenity and living conditions of adjacent occupiers 
and the effect on the street scene.  As such the 
proposal complies with Policy H7 and GP1of the City 
of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111d 180 Fulford Road, York YO10 4DA (08/00317/FULM)  

Members considered a full major application, submitted by Mr Christopher 
Gillam, for the conversion of existing vacant offices, to 12 no. apartments 
with associated parking, amenity space, landscaping, refuse storage and 
cycle parking. 

Officers updated that: 

• There was a need to amend condition 9 to relate to a turning area 
on site and the addition of conditions relating to sustainability and 
method of work statement, details circulated at the meeting; 

• A letter had also been circulated from the Police Architectural 
Liaison Officer in which he commented that window restrictors 
should be provided on vulnerable windows, security chains and spy 
holes on doors, restrictions on public access by non-residents 
together with appropriate lighting; 

• Confirmed that as the building was listed the conversion had been 
dictated by the existing building in order to keep to a minimum the 
sub division of the original compartments; 

• The addition to Condition 14, after the words “Within 2 months” of 
the words “ or during the next planting season, which ever is the 
sooner”. 

Members questioned the number of parking spaces, positioning of the 
refuse area, the possibility of installing a non protruding door adjacent to 
the parking area and including a sliding gate to the single parking area off 
Fulford Road to match the railings. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
imposition of the conditions in the report and the 
following additional condition and amended conditions:
1. 

  Amended Condition 9: Notwithstanding the details 
shown on the approved plan details of a turning area 
for the Fulford Road entrance to allow vehicles to 

Page 10



leave the site in a forward gear shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local Planning 
Authority. 

  Amended Condition 14: Within 2 months of the first 
occupation of any dwelling at the site, or within the 
next available planting season (whichever is the 
sooner), the new paved and grassed areas shown on 
Drawing no.BS1616 - PL216 rev A shall be laid out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and 
thereafter maintained for the use of residents unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

15. Prior to the commencement of the works hereby 
permitted, a detailed method of works statement shall 
be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This statement shall include the 
precautions to be taken to ensure the safety of the 
general public, the method of securing the site, the 
access to the site, the route taken by vehicles 
transporting the demolition waste from and 
construction materials to the site and the hours of 
operations. 

             16.  Prior to the commencement of development the 
developer shall submit a "Sustainable Design and 
Construction" statement for the development. This 
statement shall include the measures to be 
incorporated at the design and construction stage in 
order for the dwelling to achieve an Ecohomes "Very 
Good" rating or the equivalent standard under the 
Code for Sustainable Homes.  Prior to first occupation 
of any dwelling, a further statement shall be submitted 
which confirms that the dwelling has achieved this 
standard.  If the dwelling has not reached the required 
sustainability standard, details of the elements, which 
have not been achievable, and the reasons for not 
achieving the standard shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the character 
and appearance of the Fulford Road Conservation 
Area, the listed status of the building, the residential 
amenity of neighbouring property occupiers, transport 
provision, and the wider character of the surrounding 
area. As such the proposal complies with Policies   
GP1, GP4 (a), L1c, HE2, HE3, HE4, H12, E3 (b), H4a 
and H5a of the City of York Development Control 
Local Plan. 

Page 11



Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111e 180 Fulford Road, York YO10 4DA (08/00316/LBC)  

Consideration was given to a listed building consent application, submitted 
by Mr Christopher Gillam, for the conversion of existing vacant offices to 12 
no. apartments with associated parking, amenity space, landscaping, 
refuse storage and cycle parking. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
imposition of conditions listed in the report. 1.

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact on 
the special architectural and historic importance of the 
building. As such the proposal complies with Policies 
HE2 and HE4  of the Draft City of York Development 
Control Local Plan and national planning policy in 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 "Planning and the 
Historic Environment". 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111f 21 The Avenue, Haxby, York YO32 3EH (07/00808/FUL)  

Members considered a full application, submitted by Mr B Beckett, for the 
erection of 2 no. two storey detached dwellings with detached garages 
after the demolition of an existing workshop. 

Officers updated that: 

• The applicant had pointed out that although 37 objections had been 
received it appeared that they were not all from different properties, 
but from 30 different households; 

• If approval was granted they requested amendment of Condition 11 
to include maintenance of the drainage scheme. 

Representations in objection to the scheme were received from a 
neighbour; he stated that neighbours had only recently received 
notification of the meeting. He stated that they felt drainage was the key 
issue, there were problems at the south west corner of the site, flooding 
problems at The Avenue junction with York Road and they felt additional 
properties would worsen flooding in this area. He confirmed that Yorkshire 
Water appeared to dismiss this as a problem. Referring to the northeast 
corner of the site he stated that the site was already higher than 
surrounding gardens and that water from the Lady Kell development 
already ran on to the site following heavy sustained rain, flooding adjacent 
gardens. 

Page 12



Representations in support of the application were received from the 
applicant’s agent who confirmed that Yorkshire Water had undertaken an 
assessment of the site and the Foss Internal Drainage Board and that their 
proposals for foul and surface water discharge from the site were 
considered acceptable. He felt that this was an appropriate site for the 
dwellings which complied with all guidelines, would not cause a precedent 
as there were no similar plots in the area and that permitted development 
rights would be removed if permission was granted. He stated that it was 
proposed to create underground storage to ensure that peak flows were 
less than the current rate from the site, which would prevent problems in 
the area worsening. A representative of the applicant engineers was also 
in attendance; he confirmed that calculations had been undertaken of the 
proposed hard standing on site. The storage tank had been designed to 
cope with a 1 in 100 year storm and would have a slower release rate into 
the public system than at present.  

Members raised concern at the proposed floor levels; they stated that at 
the site meeting the previous day, it was clear that the properties would be 
higher than those on adjacent sites. They referred to historic flooding 
problems in the area and to photographs produced by neighbours, which 
showed dead trees and plants in their gardens following prolonged water 
logging. They acknowledged that the applicant had endeavoured to find a 
solution to the drainage problems but felt that this would be backland 
development which would badly affect neighbours amenity and which 
would exacerbate flooding problems in the area.  

RESOLVED:  That the application be refused. 1.

REASON: The Council considers that the proposed development 
of the site, together with the increased use of the 
existing vehicular access, would constitute an 
unacceptable form of backland development which, in 
addition to the known surface water flooding problems 
that exist on the site, would be likely to detract from 
the standard of amenity that the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties could reasonably expect to 
enjoy. Thus it is considered that the proposal would 
conflict with Policy GP1 (paragraphs a, b and i) of the 
City of York Draft Local Plan and Central Government 
advice within paragraph 34 of Planning Policy 
Statement 1 ("Delivering Sustainable Development") 
and paragraph 13 of Planning Policy Statement 3 
("Housing"). 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111g Hallfield Motors, 7 Hallfield Road, York YO31 7XQ (08/00421/FULM)  

Consideration was given to a major full application, submitted by David 
Harrison Building Contractors Limited, for the erection of a four and five 

Page 13



storey building comprising 12 no. flats with 4 no. garages and associated 
car and cycle parking (amended scheme). 

The Chair referred to an email sent to Sub-Committee members from the 
Local Member in which she raised a number of points and he displayed 
photographs of the building being erected on the adjacent site. 

Officers circulated an update, which reported the following comments: 

• Heworth Planning Panel – support reduction in number of 
apartments, lack of parking spaces and large nos of 1 bed units; 

• North Yorkshire Police – support Design and Access statement but 
recommend secure pound for cycles, secure bin area, introduction 
of video/audio links and a condition relating to secured by design: 

• Additional comments received from local residents relating to height 
and dominating effect of the proposal with overlooking windows to 
19 Faber Street; 

• City Development Team – scheme is contrary to the findings of the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), with the shape of 
the site providing design challenges a possible reduction of 
numbers suggested with more 2 or 3 bed properties. 

• In view of North Yorkshire Police comments Officers recommend 
the addition of a Secured by Design condition and an informative 
covering a secure cycle bays. 

Officers confirmed that it was not practical to obtain the 60/40 housing/flat 
split on every site and that it would be difficult to get family housing on this 
site. The properties would have little amenity space and the site was a 
harsh environment for families. 

Representations in support of the application were received from the 
applicant’s agent, who confirmed that the original scheme had been a 
delegated to Officers. He stated that the earlier scheme had been based 
on the SHMA but following the requirement for a second access to the 
building this had further reduced available floorspace. The overall scale, 
massing and footprint of the building had been retained. 

The Chair referred to his concerns at the proposal to have two parking 
spaces with rear stores but with no form of enclosure. The applicant’s 
agent confirmed that there was no reason why these could not be secured 
with gates or shutters. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
imposition of the conditions listed in the report and 
subject to the following additional conditions and 
informative: 1. 

1. Prior to the development commencing details that 
show how 'Secured by Design' principles have been 
incorporated into the scheme shall be submitted for 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority 
and once approved the development shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved 

Page 14



'Secured by Design' details prior to occupation or use 
of any part of the development hereby approved.  

   INFORMATIVE: 
In addressing the requirements of this condition, 
consideration should be given to the comments of the 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer, who has 
recommended that the cycle bays should be in a 
secure pound to prevent theft, that the bin area should 
be made secured to minimise the threat of arson, and 
that consideration should be given to incorporate video 
and audio links by the common entrances. 

2. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby 
approved, the indoor parking for plots no.10 and no.12 
on the northwest elevation of the building shall be 
fitted with secure gates/doors in accordance with 
details that have first been approved in writing by the 
Local Planning authority. 

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to types and 
sizes of the residential units, residential density, 
private amenity space, sustainability, access and 
highway safety, and scale, design and external 
appearance. As such the proposal complies with 
Policies GP4A, GP1, H4a, H5a, H3c, L1c, T4, GP15 
and GP4b of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft.

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

111h Long Acres, 63 Osbaldwick Village, Osbaldwick, York (07/02012/FUL)  

Members considered a full application, submitted by Mr and Mrs R 
Fletcher, for the erection of a dormer bungalow and garage on land to the 
rear of 61 and 63 Osbaldwick Village (resubmission). 

Officers updated that: 

• It appeared drainage was the main issue on this site;  

• Copies of a sustainability statement for the site were circulated at 
the meeting.  

• Confirmation that a new drainage layout plan had been received 
and that this was acceptable to Officers following minor 
amendments; 

• An additional condition would be required which ensured that the 
new drainage layout was applied on site; 

Page 15



• If permission were granted Condition 8 would require the 
incorporation of the words “land within the Green Belt” following the 
words “approved plans”. 

Representations in objection to the scheme were received from a Parish 
Councillor representing a neighbour. He displayed photographs of a field to 
the west of the site, which showed extensive flooding and referred to 
flooding at the entrance to the site. He explained that water from the site 
went to a Victorian brick culvert on the western side of Galligap Lane to the 
beck in the village. He stated that following flooding problems in 2000 the 
neighbour had, at his own expense, hired a pump to clear silt from the 
drain. The Chair confirmed that problems encountered with drainage were 
not within the Planning Sub-Committees remit.   

Representations in objection to the scheme were received from a 
neighbour, on behalf of a number of local residents, along Galligap Lane. 
They felt that the proposal was the development of a back garden as 
backland development, which they did not feel, was desirable and would 
cause a precedent. It was important to protect the character of the village 
and as a Conservation Area the Local Authority had a statutory duty to 
protect. Objectors felt that this property would not preserve or enhance the 
Conservation Area. They also had serious reservations about the access 
via Galligap Lane over the village green and would not want to increase 
flooding problems in the area. 

The Local Member questioned the use of trees to screen the site, drainage   
problems, access and the impact of the development in the Conservation 
Area. He asked Members to request the applicant to consider the use of 
the existing access rather than creating a new access. He felt that to open 
up a new access to Galligap Lane would have an adverse affect on the 
Conservation Area. 

In answer to questions Officers confirmed that Galligap Lane was a private 
road but that they were unsure how the rights of access were divided 
between properties. They confirmed that the Highway Authority had no 
control over the Lane and in the circumstances refusal on highway safety 
grounds could not be substantiated. They also stated that the drainage 
culvert had not been maintained over the years, which possibly added to 
the flooding and pointed out that the development would not worsen this. 

The Chair confirmed that this development was in a back garden classed 
as a brownfield site, the site was in a Conservation Area but that it was 
only Green Belt where there was a presumption against development. 

Members confirmed that they understood that residents were opposed to 
infilling but that each application was considered on its merits. They raised 
concerns at the affect the use of the Galligap Lane access would have on 
the Conservation Area. They questioned the possibility of using the 
applicants existing access to the site. 

RESOLVED:           i) That further consideration of this application be 
deferred to allow Officers to discuss with the 

Page 16



applicant amendments to the site access point.
1.

    ii)  That Officers be delegated authority to approve 
the application if agreement is reached on the 
use of the existing access rather than from 
Galligap Lane, the shared private road. 2.  

REASON:  In order to retain the character of the 
Conservation   Area.  

Action Required  
1. Deferred to allow Officers to contact the applicant 
regarding amendments to the access point.  
2. Officers delegated authority to approve application subject 
to changes to access point.   

JB 
  
JB  

111i 19 The Meadows, Skelton, York YO30 1XS (08/00749/FUL)  

Consideration was given to a full application, submitted by Mr and Mrs 
Aked, for a pitched roof dormer to the front of 19, The Meadows, Strensall. 

For Members information, Officers displayed a photomontage of the 
proposal. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
imposition of the conditions listed in the report. 1. 

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact on 
the appearance of the street scene and the effect on 
the amenity and living conditions of adjacent 
occupiers. As such the proposal complies with Policy 
H7 and GP1 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit 
Draft. 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

R MOORE, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.10 pm]. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING EAST AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE 29 MAY 2008 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS MOORE (CHAIR), CREGAN (VICE-
CHAIR), DOUGLAS, FUNNELL, KING, MORLEY 
(SUB FOR CLLR HYMAN), ORRELL, TAYLOR AND 
WISEMAN 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS HYMAN AND I WAUDBY 

IN ATTENDANCE COUNCILLOR PIERCE 

112. INSPECTION OF SITE  

The following site was inspected before the meeting: 
  
Site 
  

Attended by Reason for Visit 

Land Lying to the North 
East of 52 Temple Avenue, 
York  

Cllrs Douglas, Moore  and 
Wiseman  
  

In view of the 
contentious nature of 
the proposal and to 
assess whether the 
application prejudices 
the outline application 
for the entire site. 

  
113. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda. 

Councillor Cregan registered a personal interest in Plans Item 3a (Land 
lying to the north east of 52 Temple Avenue, York) as a City of York 
Council member of the Derwenthorpe Partnership Forum.

Councillor Morley registered a personal interest in Plans Item 3a (Land 
lying to the north east of 52 Temple Avenue, York) as a City of York 
Council member of the Derwenthorpe Partnership Forum and Chair of the 
Environmental Sub Group for the scheme. 

Councillor Wiseman registered a personal interest in Plans Item 3a (Land 
lying to the north east of 52 Temple Avenue, York) as a City of York 
Council member of the Derwenthorpe Partnership Forum.

114. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

It was reported that nobody had registered to speak under the Council’s 
Public Participation Scheme, on general issues within the remit of the Sub-
Committee. 

Page 19



115. PLANS LIST  

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Sustainable Development) relating to the following planning 
applications, outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and 
setting out the views and advice of consultees and officers. 

115a Land Lying to the North East of 52 Temple Avenue, York 
(08/00844/FUL)  

Members considered a full application, submitted by the Joseph Rowntree 
Housing Trust, for two detached dwellings with associated access, 
landscaping and parking. 

Officers updated that a sustainability statement had now been received for 
the two properties, details of which were circulated at the meeting. He 
confirmed that an outline master plan had been approved for the whole of 
the Derwenthorpe site, which had had been accompanied by an indicative 
plan of how the site might be developed. He also confirmed that the 
location of these two properties was generally in line with the earlier 
approval and that this would not prejudice the application for the entire site.  

Representations were made and questions asked on behalf of the 
Meadlands Area Residents Association (MARA). He stated that he 
supported the calling in of the application as local residents had followed 
the planning process for this site for 9 years and he felt that this 
submission added confusion to the process. He questioned why this 
application had not been made in relation to Phase 1 of the development. 
He also referred to the various committees and sub groups involved in the 
overall scheme to which none of the residents groups were involved or 
invited. He stated that residents wished to be kept informed through their 
residents meetings of progress with this site. 

Representations, in objection to the application, were received from a 
representative of the Friends of Osbaldwick Meadows, who also referred to 
his confusion as to how this application could be considered in isolation of 
the larger scheme. He stated that the proposed dwellings were totally out 
of character with adjacent properties in Temple Avenue. He also referred 
to para. 4.8 of the Officers report, which stated that no highway works 
would be required at this stage. He felt that road widening would be 
required to allow construction vehicles access to the site. He also stated 
that access to the site would not be possible until October as a hedge ran 
along the site boundary, which could not be removed whilst it contained 
nesting birds. He requested Members to refuse the application until all 
these matters were fully resolved. 

Representations in support of the application were received from the 
Director of Development at the Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust. He 
referred to the sustainability statement, circulated at the meeting, and 
confirmed that the Trust were committed to ensuring that they could deliver 
the sustainable buildings required under the terms of the Section 106 
Agreement. Their aim being to obtain the Code for Sustainable Homes 

Page 20



Level 4 on Phase 1 and make improvements on this as the development 
proceeded. He confirmed that this site had been chosen as the access and 
all services were readily available. The properties would be forward of the 
building line to mark the entrance to the site and would contain a feature 
dormer window and a covered balcony as additional amenity space. 

In answer to Members questions, Officers confirmed that if a start was to 
be made on the development prior to the end of August then a qualified 
ecologist would be required to examine the trees/hedgerow and if nests 
were found then access to the site may have to be made from a different 
point.  

In answer to Members questions, the Director of Development at the 
Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust, confirmed that the two prototype 
dwellings were to show design and construction detail to test the fabrics 
performance, pressure testing of the dwellings and skills in the industry. 
Regarding the Derwenthorpe Executive meetings he confirmed that these 
were internal meetings held once a month between the landowner, the City 
of York Council and the Trust to discuss issues around the land. 

Some Members expressed concern at development of part of the site with 
dwellings that they felt would be used as show homes prior to major work 
on the roads. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the 
conditions listed in the report and to the imposition of 
the following additional conditions and informative: 

 1. Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of 
the highways adjoining the site shall be jointly 
undertaken with the Council and the results of which 
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority 

 2. Prior to the commencement of the works hereby 
permitted, a detailed method of works statement shall 
be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This statement shall include the 
precautions to be taken to ensure the safety of the 
general public, the method of securing the site, the 
access to the site, the route taken by vehicles 
transporting the demolition waste from and 
construction materials to the site and the hours of 
operations. 

INFORMATIVE:  Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 - 
cutting trees & hedges 

Please note that under Section 1 and 99 of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 it is an offence to damage 
or destroy any birds nest whilst it is in use being built 
or to damage or destroy a bat roost. 

Page 21



Tree work and hedge cutting should not take place if 
there is a risk of the work, or its effects, being harmful 
to resident birds. Therefore it is recommended that 
major pruning of hedges is done during January and 
early February, that is after birds have eaten the 
berries and before they start to nest, and that hedge 
trimming is avoided between March and August 
(nesting season).  

However, if a hedge has to be trimmed or a tree has to 
be felled between March and August it should be 
inspected carefully for active nests and, if found, work 
should be delayed until the young birds have flown. If, 
despite best efforts and a nest is found after work has 
started, a buffer area must be left inviolate, around the 
nest 

REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 
proposal, subject to the conditions listed above, would 
not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact on 
the street scene and the amenity and living conditions 
of neighbours.  As such the proposal complies with 
Policies GP1, GP4a, H1, H3b, H5a and T4 of the City 
of York Draft Local Plan. 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

115b Wheldrake C of E Primary School, North Lane, Wheldrake, York 
(08/00383/FUL)  

Consideration was given to a full application, submitted by the Board of 
Governors of Wheldrake C of E Primary School, for the renewal of a 
temporary consent for a prefabricated building. 

Officers circulated a statement of justification for the retention of the 
temporary building with reference to the requirements of Policy GP23 of 
the Local Plan received from the Head teacher of the School. 

Representations in support of the application were made by the Head 
teacher of Wheldrake Primary School. She clarified that the school did not 
wish to retain the building as a classroom. She stated that the school was 
required to meet the extended schools offer by 2010 and although they 
had recently completed an extension to the school there was still 
insufficient room to meet this need. An application had been made for 
funding for a Youth Annex at the School, which it was anticipated, would 
be completed within 30 months. The school had been approached by early 
years providers to use the temporary accommodation as they wished to 
increase their sessions locally rather than at Sutton on Derwent to stop 
children having to travel from Wheldrake, which would also assist local 

Page 22



children in making the transition to the school. She agreed that it was only 
a temporary solution and that she appreciated that the Authority had a 
policy to remove temporary buildings. 

Members pointed out that the original planning permission for an extension 
to the school had included the removal of the temporary classroom on 
completion of the works. They felt that a renewal of consent would be 
unreasonable and pointed out that this temporary building was now 13 
years old. They questioned whether the building would be used to raise 
additional funds for the school and whether community use would be a 
change of use. 

Following discussion it was 

RESOLVED:  That the application be refused. 

REASON:  On the basis of the information supplied, the Local 
Planning Authority is not satisfied that any specific 
justification exists for the continued retention of the 
building on the site, or that any firm proposals exist for 
the replacement of the building with a more permanent 
structure, and thus it is considered that the proposal 
conflicts with Policy GP23 (paragraphs b & c) of the 
City of York Council Draft Local Plan. 

Action Required  
1. Issue the decision notice and include on the weekly 
planning decision list within the agreed timescales.   

JB  

R MOORE, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.05 pm and finished at 3.15 pm]. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 1 of 20 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Osbaldwick 
Date: 12 June 2008 Parish: Osbaldwick Parish Council 
 
Reference: 08/00736/FULM 
Application at: J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd Outgang Lane Osbaldwick York 

YO19 4UP 
For: Erection of 3 no. two storey pitched roof buildings comprising 8 

no. business units for B1, B2 and B8 uses, with associated 
access, parking, cycle storage and landscaping 

By: J H Shouksmith And Sons Ltd. 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 18 June 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application site is located within Osbaldwick Industrial Estate, and is 
accessed off Outgang Lane to the west and Murton Way to the south. The site area 
is  0.56 hectares. The application site itself is shown under the Local Plan Proposals 
Map to be unallocated ('white land') within settlement limits. It is not within a Green 
Belt. 
 
1.2 The existing site comprises of an L shaped single storey office and storage 
building with a total area of 750sq.m (unit 1). It also contains a larger building to the 
rear with a gross floor area of 1068sq.m (unit 2). Unit 1 is currently used by DVLA 
Test Centre and Shouksmith; Unit 2 is currently used for the purpose of B2 'General 
Industrial' and B8 'Storage and Distribution' with an ancillary 56.0sq.m office use . It 
is currently occupied by Colas and The Stables Building Company. Both unit 1 and 
unit 2 measure approximately 5.0m and 8.0m high.  
 
1.3 It is proposed to demolish the existing buildings and redevelop the site with 3 two 
storey pitched roof buildings comprising 8 business units for B1 'Business', B2 
'General Industrial' and B8 'Storage and Distribution' uses. 
 
1.4 The larger, site frontage building (unit 1), is to be used to replace the existing 
headquarters and office building for Shouksmith who currently own the site and have 
operated from the existing premises at Murton Way for over 40 years. The building 
would house the office and administration for the company and a distribution centre 
for service vehicles in the same manner as the current operation on the site. It would 
be a 23.5m x 13.0m two storey building with an overall height of 10.0m and a gross 
floor area of 582sq.m (a net floor area of 465sq.m). 
 
1.5 A further seven units in the form of 2 separate buildings are to be built for small 
and "start up companies" which fall within use classes B1 (office and light industry), 
B2 (general industry) and B8 (warehousing). Units 2 - 5 would be contained within a 
44.0m x 15.0m two storey building with an overall height of 10.0m. A 37.0m x 15.0m 
two storey building has also been proposed to accommodate units 6 - 8. The overall 
height of this building would also measure 10.0m. 
 

Agenda Item 4aPage 25



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 2 of 20 

1.6 The proposed floor space and type of proposed use are as follows  
 
                             Net internal floor space  Gross external floor space 
Unit 1   465.0sq.m    582sq.m 
  
Unit 2   326.0sq.m    408.0sq.m 
Unit 3   187.0sq.m    258.0sq.m 
Unit 4   187.0sq.m    258.0sq.m 
Unit 5   278.0sq.m    354.0sq.m 
 
Unit 6   278.0sq.m    354.0sq.m 
Unit 7   187.0sq.m    258.0sq.m 
Unit 8   372.0sq.m    456.0sq.m 
 
1.7 As only unit 1 has a known end user it is not possible to provide employment 
figures for the site. It is estimated that the employment rates would be in the region 
of 65 which includes the existing Shouksmiths business that is to be retained.  
 
1.8 Following negotiations with the applicant the latest amended drawings show an 
area in excess of 900sq.m on-site open space would be provided within the 
application site. In terms of parking, the latest amended drawings show the following 
parking provision for each of the units: 
 
Unit 1:  16 spaces + 2 disabled parking spaces 
Unit 2:  7 spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 3:  4 spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 4:  5 spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 5:  6 spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 6:  6 spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 7:  4 Spaces + 1 disabled parking space 
Unit 8:  7 Spaces + 2 disabled parking spaces 
 
1.9 The site currently contains 70 parking spaces for cars, LGVs and motorcycles 
and 2 disabled parking spaces. The site plan further shows areas designated for 
cycle parking and storage of refuse and recycling.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
1.10 00/00694/FUL: Erection of single storey flat roof front extension. Permission 
granted on 8 June 2000. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams  East Area (1) 0003 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2 CONF 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 3 of 20 

Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYSP8 
Reducing dependence on the car 
  
CYGP3 
Planning against crime 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYE4 
Employment devt on unallocated land 
  
CYSP7A 
The sequential approach to development 
  
CYGP15 
Protection from flooding 
  
CYL1C 
Provision of New Open Space in Development 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
3.1 Highway Network Management consulted. First response received 29 April 2008. 
The team has no objections to the principle of the commercial redevelopment of this 
site. Nevertheless the following comments were made: 
 
- this application is considered speculative in that three use classes are requested 
with not all of the units being allocated to specific or known clients; 
- the parking levels shown seem to relate to B1 use throughout.  
- this use has the highest number of spaces in accordance with the Council's design 
standards; 
- attention should be drawn to the fact that the number of proposed spaces would 
even exceed B1 uses' recommended limits; 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 4 of 20 

- a total of 60 parking spaces are proposed plus 11 disabled spaces; the 
recommended maximum spaces, based on aggregating individual plots, is a total of 
49 spaces with an additional 5% of total for disabled (total of 3).  
- the maximum number per unit based on a B1 use should be as follows:  
 
i. Unit 1: 10 spaces + 1 dis 
ii.  Unit 2:   7 spaces + 1 dis 
iii.  Unit 3:   4 spaces + 1 dis 
iv.  Unit 4:   4 spaces + 1 dis 
v.  Unit 5:   6 spaces + 1 dis 
vi.  Unit 6:   6 spaces + 1 dis 
vii.  Unit 7:   4 spaces + 1 dis 
viii.  Unit 8:   8 spaces + 1 dis 
 
- no objections were raised with regard to the closing off of two existing accesses off 
Outgang Lane and a re-alignment of the existing access off Murton Way. This is 
subject to conditions requiring the verge and the footway at the accesses points to 
be reinstated to the satisfaction of the highway authority in all respects.  
- There are no pedestrian facilities into the site. A footway link is recommended 
along the western edge of the access up to the unit 2 cycle parking area and linked 
with the area fronting units 2- 5; 
- Personnel doors to all units should open inwards rather than outwards over 
pedestrian areas; 
- details of cycle storage can be secured by condition; 
 
Revised comments received 23 May 2008 following the submission of the latest 
amended scheme. The following comments were made: 
 
- the parking levels have been reduced in accordance with the previous 
recommendations with the exception of unit 1, which shows a total of 16 + 2 
disabled; 
- a footway link into the site is to be provided into the site. The standard width of the 
path is 2m rather than 1.5m; 
- no revised "HGV swept paths" have been submitted following the revision of the 
site layout. Nevertheless having applied the overlays to the drawing it is satisfied that 
standard rigid HGV's can be accommodated within the site; 
- cycle storage should be covered and secured; 
- no highway objections subject to conditions. 
 
3.2 Environmental Protection Unit consulted. Latest response received 22 May 2008. 
The unit have no objections. Nevertheless, concerns were raised with regard to the 
working hours of the units, vehicles leaving site at unsociable hours, piling, and noise 
from any possible external plant or extraction systems. Conditions and informative 
were recommended to deal with these issues.  
 
3.3 Structures and Drainage team consulted. Response received 12 May 2008; the 
following comments were made: 
- the site is within high risk flood zone 3 and may suffer from river flooding; 
- the proposal would reduce the impermeable area from 95% to 80%; 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 5 of 20 

- further consideration should be given to the reduction of peak discharge from the 
site; 
- peak run off from brownfield sites should be attenuated to 70% of the existing rate; 
- storage volume calculations should accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no 
surface flooding, along with no internal flooding of buildings or surface run off from 
the site in a 1:100 year storm; 
- proposed areas within the model should also include an additional 20% allowance 
for climate change. 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
3.4 Osbaldwick Parish Council consulted. Response received 22 April 2008. The 
following concerns were made: 
- the proposal would remove an old willow; 
- the proposal would intensify the use of the site; 
- access point should be off Outgang Lane and not from Murton Way only; 
- additional vehicle movements would be a hazard as the access point would be very 
near to the end of Link Road; 
- the proposed cladding materials should be either green or brown, as should the 
roofing materials; 
- unsurfaced parking areas should be adopted to reduce runoff. 
 
Second response received 12 May 2008 and 22 May 2008 following the submission 
of amended drawings. The following concerns were raised: 
- the proposal would contain approximately the same number of parking spaces as 
at present; 
- all the traffic is proposed to come out of the main entrance whereas at present 
about 2 thirds exit and enter via Outgang Lane; 
- the entrance onto Murton Way is very close to The Link Road and will increase the 
risk of collision; 
- the provision of very small areas of amenity land do not serve any purpose and 
reduce the number of parking spaces; 
- the amendment proposed very little change to previous application; 
- the additional traffic is a serious concern. 
 
3.5 Neighbours notified and site notice posted. Expired 2 June 2008. One letter of 
objection received to date; the following concerns were raised: 
 
- the proposal would significantly increase exposure to noise and disturbance; 
- planning conditions should be in place to control noise to a level similar to existing 
use; 
- the height of the proposed development would exceed the current height of the 
existing and adjacent units; 
- the 'piled foundation solution' method of construction would significantly damage 
the property at 29 Murton way during construction work. 
 
3.6 Foss Internal Drainage Board consulted. Response received 22 April 2008. No 
objections. Nevertheless the Board would not wish to see any increase in the rate of 
discharge to Osbaldwick Beck and therefore would look for confirmation from the 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 6 of 20 

developer that the existing site does in fact discharge to Osbaldwick Beck. 
Conditions recommended. 
 
3.7 Environment Agency consulted. Response received 1 May 2008. No objections 
subject to conditions. The Agency has no further comments following the submission 
of amended drawings.  
 
3.8 Safer York Partnership consulted. Response received 20 May 2008. No 
objections were raised. However the following recommendations were made: 
- symbolic barrier should be in place at the site entrance to give the impression that 
the site is a private development; 
- perimeter fence should be in place around to enclose the site; 
- all shrubs and hedges should have a maximum growth height of 1m, whilst all trees 
should be pruned up to a minimum of 2m; 
- perimeter lighting should illuminate all recesses of the building; 
- commercial and industrial doors must comply with LSP 1175 grade 3; 
- escape doors and frame should be manufactured from steel; 
- fire door can be locked when the premises is not in use; 
- all windows should conform to improve security window standard BS7950; 
- efforts should be made to secure bins away from the buildings; 
- cycle bays should have secure parking and be overlooked from the office around 
the site; 
- the offices should be alarmed to BS4737; 
- CCTVs should be in place covering the site entrance, building access/exit and the 
car parking areas for added security; 
- Secured by Design condition recommended.  
 
3.9 Yorkshire Water consulted. Response received 20 May 2008. No objections 
subject to conditions to protect the local aquatic environment and Yorkshire Water 
infrastructure. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The main issues to be considered are as follows: 
i. Employment Development on Unallocated Sites 
ii. Sequential Approach to development  
iii. Scale, Design and External Appearance  
iv. On site open space provision and Landscaping 
v. Highway safety and Parking Standards 
vi. Sustainability and Environmental Protection 
vii. Other considerations 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT ON UNALLOCATED SITES 
 
4.2 This application relates to a commercial and industrial redevelopment/expansion, 
although the application site has not been allocated for such use. Nevertheless in 
accordance with policy E4 of the City of York Draft Local Plan there is no objection in 
principle to commercial and industrial development which involves the 
redevelopment of existing buildings within the built up area of the city, provided that 
the scale and design is appropriate to the locality. 

Page 30



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 7 of 20 

 
SEQUENTIAL APPROACH TO DEVELOPMENT 
 
4.3 Central Government advice in Planning Policy Statement no.6 "Planning for 
Town Centres" (PPS6) requires a sequential assessment to be submitted for office 
developments in an out of centre location. The purpose of the assessment is to 
demonstrate that there are no other more central sites available for the development 
before the consideration of an out of centre location. PPS6 also requires the 
applicant to demonstrate that there is a need for the development, that the 
development is of an appropriate scale, that there are no unacceptable impacts on 
existing centres, and that the proposed location is accessible. 
 
4.4 In accordance with policy E3 of the Regional Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and 
the Humber (2008), Policy SP7a (criterion c) of the City of York Draft Local Plan 
2005 further states that planning permission will be granted for office development 
with a net floor space of over 400sq.m in an out of centre location, where it can be 
demonstrated that York City Centre and Edge of City Centre sites have been 
assessed and are incapable of meeting the development requirements of the 
proposal.   
 
4.5 This application has been considered bearing in mind that there are already 
office uses exist on site. According to the information supplied by the applicant both 
Shouksmith and DVLA occupies a total office floor space of 750 square metres. In 
addition, the existing warehouse building to the rear of the office block (unit 2) 
contains in total 56 square metres office floor space. This gives a total of 806 square 
metres office floor area. The purpose of this planning application is to develop 8 units 
with a total floor area of 2928 square metres. The application has been submitted on 
the basis of providing a mixture of B1 (office and light industry), B2 (general 
industrial) and B8 (storage and distribution) uses within the smaller units. Hence it 
would be possible that all 8 units could be used for Class B1 office uses; this would 
increase the overall office floor space in an out of town location from the existing 806 
square metres to 2928 square metres. 
 
4.6 However, in order to comply with the guidance set out by Central Government 
guidance and the policies set out in the City of York Draft Local Plan relating to the 
vitality and viability of York City Centre, it has been agreed with the applicant that 
only unit 1 and unit 3  be used solely for B1 (a) office use. As both units would 
equate to a total floor area similar to the current office floor area within the 
application site, it is considered that this arrangement would not harm the vitality and 
viability of the York City Centre. On this basis it is contended that a sequential 
assessment and an impact assessment are not required from the applicant. The 
remaining units (namely units 2,4, 5, 6, 7 and 8) would be restricted to B1 (b) and (c), 
B2 and B8 uses only. This is to be secured by condition.    
 
SCALE, DESIGN AND EXTERNAL APPEARANCE 
 
4.7 The existing office block (unit 1) is a long L shaped single storey timber boarding 
structure. To the rear is a large concrete and timber boarding warehouse building 
with a steel pitched roof above. The office block has been erected and occupied by 
Shouksmith for over 40 years. It is sited in a corner plot and is highly visible from the 

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 8 of 20 

junction of Murton Way and Outgang Lane. Due to their design, appearance, 
together with the quality of the external materials used for the construction of both 
buildings in a location highly visible from public view, it is considered that these 
buildings contribute very little to the general character and appearance of the locality.  
 
4.9 The proposed buildings would be a brick construction with a profiled metal 
cladding pitched roof. These buildings are characterised by features including long 
rectangular aluminium framed double glazed windows between brick columns on the 
ground and first floors, blank panels between windows, large entrances with curved 
canopies above, and gable roofs on both ends of the buildings' façade. It is 
considered that the proposed design would help to break up the overall massing of 
the buildings as well as enhancing the visual quality of the locality. The choice of 
colour, texture etc of the building materials can be controlled by condition 
 
4.10 In comparison with the existing layout the overall use of the site would be more 
intensified by virtue of the proposed increase in floor space and the number of units 
proposed. Nevertheless, the quality of the buildings proposed, together with their 
more attractive layout and the provision soft landscaping and green open spaces 
would ensure that, on balance, a higher density of development can be achieved 
without compromising the visual quality of the environment.  
 
4.11 The issue concerning the overall height of the buildings has been considered. 
The buildings surrounding the site are predominately large warehouses, industrial 
and commercial blocks with a ridge height of approximately 5 to 8 metres. There are 
very few examples of two storey buildings within the locality, nevertheless it is not 
considered unusual for a two storey commercial building to measure 10.0m high. 
Furthermore, given that the application site is well screened by a number of 5-8m 
high buildings with relatively large footprints, it is not considered that the proposed 
10.0m high buildings would appear intrusive or overbearing, to the extent that would 
unacceptably harm the character and appearance of this industrial area.  
 
ON SITE OPEN SPACE PROVISION AND LANDSCAPING 
  
4.12 Policy L1C of City of York Draft Local Plan 2005 requires commercial proposals 
over 2500 square metres gross floor space to make provision for open space needs 
of future occupiers. In the case of this development, due to the overall size of the 
application site (0.56 hectares), the concern raised by Highway Network 
Management team regarding the over supply of parking spaces, together with the 
issue concerning the isolated location of development in relation to the nearest local 
services and public open spaces, it is considered that on-site open space provision 
should be provided rather than off site financial contributions.  
 
4.13  The advice note " Commuted Sum Payments for Open Space in New 
Developments", approved by Planning Committee for development control purposes 
in April 2007, states that 9 square metres of open space is required per employee. 
Hence on the basis that 100 employees are likely to be employed on site, a total of 
900 square metres of open space would be required within the application site.  
 
4.14 The latest scheme submitted by the applicant shows on-site open space would 
be provided for each of the units; the total area of amenity space to be provided on 

Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 9 of 20 

site would exceed 900sq.m. Due to issues concerning ownership and the site 
management for each of the units, it is not considered appropriate in this instance to 
provide a large communal open space for all 8 units. In addition, due to the fact that 
the open space proposed would not be owned and maintained by the Council, a 
section 106 Agreement towards ensuring the provision and future maintenance of 
the open space facility would not be required. A condition has been recommended to 
ensure that the open space as shown on the site plan will be retained at all times for 
its intended purpose. 
 
4.15 The site plan submitted also shows an area of land around the boundaries of 
the application site to be used for the purpose of providing  landscaping. This would 
provide necessary screening for the development, would soften the existing 
landscape of an industrial site, as well as adding further enhancement to the visual 
character and appearance of the area. Overall it is considered that the proposed 
development would contribute positively to the local environment. A landscaping 
condition has been recommended to ensure that the types, sizes and locations of the 
species to be provided on site are satisfactory.   
 
4.16 The application indicates that it is not intended to remove any existing trees 
from within the application site. For the purpose of protecting the existing trees within 
the application site a condition has been recommended.  
 
HIGHWAY SAFETY AND PARKING STANDARDS: 
 
4.17 Highway Network Management team have been consulted. The main highway 
issue concerning the proposed development is in connection with the excessive 
number of parking spaces to be provided on site. The original scheme shows large 
areas of land adjacent to the three blocks of building to be allocated for 75 parking 
spaces plus 11 disabled spaces. As the recommended maximum spaces, based on 
aggregating individual plots, is a total of 49 spaces with an additional 5% of total for 
disabled parking, it is considered that the scheme as originally proposed would fail to 
meet the Central Government's aims of discouraging users of the building from 
driving to the site by restricting the availability of parking in order to restrict vehicle 
movements. The Government's aims and objectives on transport issues are set out 
in Planning Policy Guidance no.13 "Transport" (2001).  
 
4.18 The excessive number of parking spaces would also give rise to unsustainable 
development. Policy GP4a of the City of York Draft Local Plan 2005 requires 
applicant to set out the accessibility of the site by means other than private vehicles. 
It also requires developments to be within walking distances from frequent public 
transport routes and easily accessible for pedestrians and cyclists. Hence the over 
provision of parking as shown on the original scheme would also contradict the aims 
and objectives of this policy and the standards set out in Planning Policy Statement 
no.1 "Delivering Sustainable Development".  
 
4.19 Following negotiations with the applicants the latest scheme shows a total of 55 
parking spaces plus 10 disabled parking spaces for all 8 units. Whilst the total 
spaces proposed would still exceed the maximum number of parking spaces 
recommended, overall it is considered that the latest scheme is a significant 
improvement. Furthermore, given the location of the site (on the edge of a defined 

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 10 of 20 

urban area in York), together with the consideration that the current occupants of the 
site enjoy more parking spaces than are now proposed, it is considered that the 
provision of 65 parking spaces in this location is unacceptable. The reduction in 
parking provision would also ensure that sufficient open space would be provided on 
site, in accordance with policy L1c of the City of York Draft Local Plan 2005. 
 
4.21 With regard to the issue concerning additional vehicle movements, as 
mentioned above, by virtue of this development the total number of parking spaces 
(excluding disabled parking) would be reduced to 55 from the existing 70. Hence on 
the basis that all parking spaces are fully occupied, it is likely that the proposed 
development would have the potential of decreasing, rather than increasing traffic 
generation.  
 
4.22 With regard to the existing access entrance off Outgang Lane and its close 
proximity to the Link Road, Highway Network Management team have stated in their 
response that they have no objections to the closing off of the existing accesses off 
Outgang Lane. Highways officers consider that the proposed re-alignment of the 
existing access off Murton Way would comply with the design requirements for 
accommodating eight B1, B2 and B8 units. Furthermore, the existing access at the 
same position has had no known accident history. Therefore, subject to the 
recommended conditions it is not considered that the provision of a single entrance 
into the application site would create conditions prejudicial to highway safety. There 
are also insufficient highway grounds to justify a preference for an access off 
Outgang Lane rather than from Murton Lane. 
 
4.23 Due to issues concerning the future occupancy of each of the units and the 
likelihood that all 8 units would be separately owned, it is not considered that the 
imposition of a travel plan condition would be appropriate in this case. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
4.24 Policy GP4a "Sustainability" of the City of York Draft Local Plan 2005 sets out a 
list of criteria development should take into account.  According to the sustainability 
statement submitted, the construction of the building will have regard to minimising 
the use of non-renewable resources through the maximum use of recycled materials 
from the existing buildings on site where this is feasible. Furthermore, fill material will 
be from recycled material from the existing buildings on site, timber will be originated 
from accredited sustainable sources, and internal concrete blocks at plinth level will 
be from recycled aggregates. 
 
4.25 Energy efficiency of the buildings will be considered through the use of on site 
renewable energy equipment with particular emphasis on the use of air source heat 
pumps. For the larger buildings such as the development proposed,  this potential is 
expected to provide around a 10% reduction in energy use. Energy certificates under 
Building Regulations will also be required for the buildings to ensure efficiency of the 
buildings.  
 
4.26 The size of the development and the likely type of business occupying the site 
could potentially generate polluting substances to ground, water, land and air. Due to 
the close proximity between the site and the nearby beck, the submitted flood risk 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 11 of 20 

assessment states measures are proposed to ensure that the proposed uses would 
pose no pollution risk to this water body. In addition, surface water will pass through 
solar powered interceptors to prevent materials such as oil, grit etc from entering the 
watercourse. Water use will be considered within the building through the fitting of 
low flush toilet systems and flow restricted tap fitting to sinks. Issues concerning the 
protection of the water environment would be further controlled through a set of 
planning conditions recommended by Yorkshire Water and the Environment Agency. 
With regard to the potential for noise and pollution from demolition and building work, 
the applicant has indicated that at building contract stage the construction company  
will be asked to work to the Considerate Constructor Scheme or similar.  
 
4.28 Due to the fact that the larger unit to be constructed would be primarily for office 
and distribution use, and that other units are small in nature and unlikely to be used 
for large scale manufacturing, it is unlikely that the B1, B2 and B8 uses proposed 
could unacceptably increase the current noise level generated within this 
industrial/commercial area. The issue concerning the adoption of a 'piled foundation 
solution' in response to the nature of the existing ground conditions, and the degree 
to which such a method of construction could affect the property at 29 Murton Way, 
has been noted. In order to minimise the impact of noise and vibration from the site 
preparation, groundwork, construction and demolition phases of the development 
including piling operations if carried out, a condition has been recommended to 
require the submission of a Construction Environmental  Management Plan (CEMP) 
prior to the commencement of development. In addition, a condition has been 
recommended to control the hours of operation of each of the units proposed. 
 
4.29 In addition to the above, the site is also within walking distance of a large 
residential area at Osbaldwick.  A substantial area of the city is within a 20 minute 
cycle journey and public transport is available within 400 metres of the site.  
 
4.30 Environmental benefits and regeneration opportunities will also be brought 
about through the replacement of the existing environmentally unsound buildings 
with modern structures built to the latest building regulation standards and the 
introduction of new areas of native species landscaping and green open space for 
the users of the site.  
 
4.31 Having regard to the above, together with the potential employment benefits of 
the scheme in particular to those already living in York and companies seeking  
accommodation to set up a small business, it is considered that the proposal would 
comply with the standards set out in policy GP4a of the City of York Draft Local Plan 
2005.  Nevertheless, the Council's Interim Planning Statement on Sustainable 
Design and Construction requires a minimum standard for large scale commercial 
developments to achieve an overall BREEAM standard rating of 'very good'. As the 
proposed development falls within this requirement, a condition has been 
recommended to ensure that such a standard would be achieved.  
 
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
4.32 FLOOD RISK: the application site is within flood zone 3, thus a Flood Risk 
Assessment has been submitted. The Environment Agency has raised no objections 
to the proposal subject to appropriate conditions. Yorkshire Water and the Foss 

Page 35



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 12 of 20 

Internal Drainage Board have also been consulted and have suggested a number of 
drainage conditions. The recommendations put forward by the Structures and 
Drainage team have been included as an informative for the purpose of satisfying 
the foul and surface water condition. By virtue of the large area of land devoted to 
landscaping and amenity, the proposal would reduce the area of impermeable 
ground that currently exists.  
 
4.33 PLANNING AGAINST CRIME: In accordance with policy GP3 of the City of 
York Draft Local Plan 2005 crime prevention measures are require to be considered 
on all new developments. Safer York Partnership has been consulted and have 
made a number of recommendations associated with the site entrance, the perimeter 
of the site, natural surveillance, lighting, perimeter doors and emergency doors, 
windows, bin stores, cycle bays, intruder alarms and CCTV provision. The proposed 
recommendations can be covered by a Secured by Design condition.  
 
4.34 Having taken the above into account, it is considered that the proposed 
development accords with the national planning policies and the policies set out in 
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and the City of York Draft Local Plan (2005). 
Hence, this application is recommended for approval. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
By virtue of the above this application is recommended for approval. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans and other submitted details: 
 
Drawing Number M2463-02 received 19 March 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-(6-8)06 received 19 March 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-(2-5)04 received 19 March 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-00 received 19 March 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-01 Rev C received 19 May 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-(6-8)05 Rev A received 19 May 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-(2-5)03 Rev A received 19 May 2008 
Drawing Number M2463-(1)02 Rev B received 19 May 2008 
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as an amendment to the approved plans. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 

Page 36



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 13 of 20 

4  LAND1  IN New Landscape details  
 
5  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including 
deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be 
confined to the following hours: 
 
 Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
 Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
 Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring occupants. 
 
 6  Notwithstanding any proposed method of disposal for foul and surface water 
specified on the approved drawings or in the application form submitted with the 
application, the development hereby approved shall not begin until details of foul and 
surface water drainage works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, and carried out in accordance with these approved details. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for 
the proper drainage of the site. 
 
INFORMATIVE: For the purpose of satisfying this condition the applicant is advised 
that the site should be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and 
surface water on and off site. 
 
 7  Notwithstanding the information contained on the approved plans, the height 
of the approved development shall not exceed 10.2  metres, as measured from 
existing ground level. Before any works commence on the site, a means of 
identifying the existing ground level on the site shall be agreed in writing, and any 
works required on site to mark that ground level accurately during the construction 
works shall be implemented prior to any disturbance of the existing ground level. Any 
such physical works or marker shall be retained at all times during the construction 
period. 
 
Reason: To establish existing ground level and therefore to avoid confusion in 
measuring the height of the approved development, and to ensure that the approved 
development does not have an adverse impact on the character of the surrounding 
area. 
 
 8  The areas shown on drawing no. M2463-01 Rev C as "amenity space" shall 
be retained at all times, and shall not be used for any other purposes other than on-
site open space provision unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interest of the users of the B1, B2 and B8 units hereby approved in 
accordance with Planning Policy Guidance no.17 "Planning for Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation" and Policy L1c of the City of York Draft Local Plan. 
 
9  VISQ4  Boundary details to be supplied  
 

Page 37



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 14 of 20 

10  No development approved by this permission shall commence until a scheme 
for the provision and implementation of a surface water run-off limitation has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved programme and details.  
 
Reason :  To prevent the increased risk of flooding. 
 
INFORMATIVE: For the purpose of satisfying this condition the applicant is advised 
that in accordance with guidance contained within Planning Policy Statement 25 
"Development and Flood Risk" and in agreement with the Environment Agency / 
Foss Internal Drainage Board, peak run-off from brown-field sites are now being 
attenuated to 70% of the existing rate (based on 140 l/s/ha of connected 
impermeable areas). Storage volume calculations, using computer modelling, should 
accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along with no internal 
flooding of buildings or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100 year storm.  Proposed 
areas within the model should also include an additional 20% allowance for climate 
change, which is recommended in the developer's submitted Flood Risk Assessment 
(Halcrow - March 2008). 
 
11  Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning 
permission (or such other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal 
with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to 
and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority: 
 
i.      A preliminary risk assessment which identifies: 
 
a.         all previous uses 
 
b.         potential contaminants associated with those uses 
 
c.         a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors 
 
d.         potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site. 
 
ii.      A site investigation scheme, based on (i) to provide information for a detailed 
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site. 
 
iii.      The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (ii) and, based 
on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the 
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken. 
 
iv.      A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in (iii) are complete and identifying any 
requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action. 
 
Any changes to these components require the express consent of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 
 

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 15 of 20 

 Reason:       To Protect controlled waters. 
 
12  If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has 
submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an 
amendment to the remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with. 
 
Reason To protect controlled waters  
 
13  Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be 
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, 
which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that 
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason:  To protect controlled waters 
 
14  Prior to the development commencing details that show how 'Secured by 
Design' principles have been incorporated into the scheme shall be submitted for the 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority and once approved the development 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 'Secured by Design' details 
prior to occupation or use of any part of the development hereby approved.  
 
Reason: In the interest of community safety, to reduce the fear of crime and to 
prevent, crime and disorder in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 
 
INFORMATIVE: 
In addressing the requirements of this condition, consideration should be given to the 
comments of the Police Architectural Liaison Officer, who has recommended the 
following:  
 
i. Site entrance should be fitted with symbolic barrier in the form of rumble strips, 
pillars or the like. This gives the impression that the site is a private development and 
will help deter potential offenders. 
 
ii. Perimeter fence should be in the form of expanded metal, weldmesh or paladin ( 
to BS.1722 Part 14 ) to a minimum height of 2.4m. If fencing is used Quickthorn or 
Hawthorn hedging planting planted adjacent to the fence will increase security. 
 
iii. Perimeter lighting should illuminate all recesses of the building. A series of vandal 
resistant, high pressure sodium lamps operated by photoelectric sensors are 
recommended, these should be mounted at the highest inaccessible points. 
Consideration should be given to the carbon footprint of the site. If the site is not 
used at night then there should be no reason to illuminate the empty car parking 
bays. 
 
iv. Commercial and industrial doors should comply with LSP 1175 grade 3. The 

Page 39



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 16 of 20 

opening leaf of any double doors should be fitted top and bottom with key operated 
rack mortise bolts and the meeting styles should be rebated. Consideration should 
be given for a chime facility on external doors. 
 
v. Escape doors and frames should be manufactured from steel, without visible 
ironmongery. Fire doors can be locked when the premises is not in use. 
 
vi. All windows should conform to improve security window standard BS7950. 
Vulnerable windows should use min. 6.4mm laminated glass.  
 
vii. Efforts should be made to secure bins away from the buildings, this reduces the 
risk of arson to the main buildings. 
 
viii. The cycle bays should have secure parking and be overlooked from the offices 
around the site. 
 
ix. The offices should be alarmed to BS 4737. Consideration should also be given to 
Redcare, panic buttons in vulnerable areas and door chimes. It is cheaper to have 
these devices fitted at the building stage than installing them after completion. It also 
cuts down on office disruption. 
 
x. CCTV should be installed covering the site entrance, building access / exit and the 
car parking areas for added security. 
 
15  No piped discharge of surface water from the application site shall take place 
until works to provide a satisfactory outfall for surface water have been completed in 
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority before development commences. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the site is properly drained and surface water is not 
discharged to the foul sewerage system which will prevent overloading. 
 
16  Surface water from vehicle parking and hardstanding areas shall be passed 
through an interceptor of adequate capacity prior to discharge.  
 
Reason: In the interest of satisfactory drainage. 
 
INFORMATIVE: 
The applicant is advised that roof drainage should not be passed through any 
interceptor. 
 
17  Any liquid storage tanks shall be located within a bund with a capacity of not 
less than 110% of the largest tank or largest combined volume of connected tanks. 
 
Reason: To ensure that there are no discharges to the public sewerage system 
which may injure the sewer, interfere with free flow or prejudicially affect the 
treatment and disposal of its contents. 
 
18  Notwithstanding the provisions of any Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order and any Town and Country Planning General or Special 

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 17 of 20 

Development Order for the time being in force relating to 'permitted development' 
units nos. 2, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 as shown on drawing no. M2463-01 Rev C hereby 
approved shall not be used other than as B1 (b) and (c), B2 and B8 as defined in the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended the Use Classes 
(Amendment) (England) Order 2005. 
 
Reason: In the interest of the vitality and viability of the existing centres in 
accordance with Planning Policy Statement no.6 "Planning for Town Centres" and 
Policy SP7a of the City of York Draft Local Plan 2005. 
 
19  The developer shall aim to achieve a Building Research Establishment 
Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) assessment standard of at least 
"very good" for the development. Unless otherwise agreed in writing prior to the 
commencement of the development, the developer shall submit in writing for the 
approval of the Local Planning Authority a BREEAM design assessment 
demonstrating the progress of the BREEAM assessment, the percentage score 
expected to be achieved and the standard to which this relates. Where this does not 
meet at least a 'very good' standard then the developer shall demonstrate the 
changes that will be made to the development in order to achieve this standard. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and accords with Policy 
GP4a of the Draft City of York Local Plan and the Interim Planning Statement on 
Sustainable Design and Construction. 
 
20  Prior to any works commencing on site a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall identify the steps and procedures that will 
be implemented to minimise the creation and impact of noise and  vibration from the 
site preparation, groundwork, construction and demolition phases of the 
development including piling operations if carried out. Once approved, the CEMP 
shall be adhered to at all times, unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect adjoining occupants from noise. 
 
21  The hours of operation of each unit hereby permitted shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to occupation. 
 
Reason: To protect adjoining occupants from noise. 
 
22  None of the existing trees shown on the approved plans shall be wilfully 
damaged or destroyed or uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the previous 
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees removed without such 
consent or dying or being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall 
be replaced with trees of such size and species unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  The Local Planning Authority considers it important to safeguard these 
trees in a positive manner so as to secure their continued well being. 
 

Page 41



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 18 of 20 

23  HWAY10  Vehicular areas surfaced, details reqd  
 
24  HWAY14  Access to be approved, details reqd  
 
25  The development shall not come into use until all existing vehicular crossings 
not shown as being retained on the approved plans have been removed by 
reinstating the kerbing and footway to match adjacent levels. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of good management of the highway and road safety. 
 
26  HWAY18  Cycle parking details to be agreed  
 
27  HWAY19  Car and cycle parking laid out  
 
28  No barrier or gate to any vehicular access shall be erected within 15m of the 
rear of the footway abutting the site, without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority,  and shall at no time open towards the public highway. 
 
Reason:  To prevent obstruction to other highway users. 
 
29  HWAY31  No mud on highway during construction  
 
30  HWAY35  Servicing within the site  
 
31  HWAY21  Internal turning areas to be provided  
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to employment development, sequential approach to 
development, scale, design and external appearance, open space provision, 
landscaping, highway safety and parking standards, flood risk, sustainability and 
environmental protection. As such the proposal complies with Planning Policy 
Statement no.1 "Delivering Sustainable Development", Planning Policy Statement 
no.6 "Planning for Town Centres", Planning Policy Statement no.25 "Development 
and Flood Risk", Planning Policy Guidance no.17 "Planning for Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation", Policy E3 of the Regional Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and the 
Humber (2008) and Policies GP1, SP8, GP3, GP4a, GP9, T4, E4, SP7a, L1c and 
GP15 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
 2. If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a scheme remediation to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 

Page 42



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 19 of 20 

reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
 3. The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements for 
the control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 
1974.  In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution 
and noise, the following guidance should be noted and acted upon. Failure to do so 
could result in formal action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
 
i. The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the 
general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in 
particular Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
 
ii. All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to 
minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
iii. The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise 
emissions. 
 
iv. All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise 
dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression. 
 
v There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
4. The applicant is recommended by the Environment Agency to: 
 
i.      Follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11, Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination, when dealing with land affected by 
contamination. 
 
ii.      Refer to the Environment Agency Guidance on Requirements for Land 
Contamination Reports for the type of information that is required in order to assess 
risks to controlled waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to 
other receptors, e.g. human health. 
 
iii. Refer to the Environment Agency website at www.environment-

agency.gov.uk for more information. 
 
 5. In accordance with the advice of the Foss Internal Drainage Board the applicant 
is advised that all drainage routes through the site should be maintained both during 
the works on site and after completion of the works. 
 
 6. In accordance with the advice of the Foss Internal Drainage Board the applicant 
is advised that provisions are required to ensure that upstream and downstream 
riparian owners and those areas that are presently served by any drainage routes 
passing through or adjacent to the site are not adversely affected by the 

Page 43



 

Application Reference Number: 08/00736/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 20 of 20 

development. 
 
 7. In accordance with the advice of the Foss Internal Drainage Board the applicant 
is advised that drainage routes should include all methods by which water may be 
transferred through the site and shall include such systems as "ridge and furrow" and 
"overland flows".   The affect of raising site levels on adjacent property must be 
carefully considered and appropriate measures taken to negate influences. 
 
 8. You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the 
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below).  For 
further information please contact the officer named: 
 
Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - Stuart Partington (01904) 551361 
 9. The applicant is reminded that in accordance with the advice of the Environment 
Agency, prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or 
soakaway system, all surface water drainage from lorry parks and/or parking areas 
for fifty car park spaces or more and hardstandings should be passed through an oil 
interceptor designed compatible with the site being drained. Roof water shall not 
pass through the interceptor. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Billy Wong Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551326 
 

Page 44



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

J.H. Shouksmith and Sons Ltd, Outgang Lane, 

08/00736/FULM

Not Set

Not Set

03 June 2008

Application Site

1:1250

Page 45


	Agenda
	
	About CYC Meetings

	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 29/05/2008 East Area Planning Sub-Committee

	4a J H Shouksmith and Sons Ltd, Outgang Lane, Osbaldwick, York YO19 4UP (08/00736/FULM)
	08 00736 FULM


